Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

Council?
Constitution Committee
Agenda
Date: Friday, 4th August, 2017
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: The Ballroom, Sandbach Town Hall, High Street, Sandbach,
CW11 1AX

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and in the report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision-making and
overview and scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to
the Council’s website.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is
allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to
the work of the body in question. Individual members of the public may speak for up
to 5 minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time
allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where there are a number of
speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use this facility.
However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with
that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given.

Contact: Paul Mountford, Executive Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01270 686472
E-Mail: paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk



4. Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2017.
5. Review of the Constitution (Pages 7 - 24)

To consider proposals for a comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution.

THERE ARE NO PART 2 ITEMS



Page 3 Agenda Item 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Constitution Committee
held on Thursday, 23rd March, 2017 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor A Martin (Chairman)
Councillor M Beanland (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors G Baxendale, E Brooks, B Burkhill, M Deakin, S Edgar,
H Gaddum, S Hogben, D Mahon, N Mannion, R Menlove and G Williams

Officers

Brian Reed, Head of Governance and Democratic Services

Suzanne Antrobus, Legal Team Manager Commercial Projects and Property
Paul Mountford, Executive Democratic Services Officer

Martin Smith, Civic and Administration Manager

Charlotte Simpson, Public Health Consultant

Apologies
Councillor D Newton

At the start of the meeting, all stood for a minute’s silence in memory of
the tragic events in Westminster the previous day.

32 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
33 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public wishing to speak.
34 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13" February 2017 be approved
as a correct record.

35 ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD'S
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee considered revised terms of reference for the Health and
Wellbeing Board.

The Health and Wellbeing Board’s Terms of Reference included the
requirement for them to be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that



36

Page 4

they remained fit for purpose. The Board had reviewed and agreed
amendments to its terms of reference at its meeting on 31st January 2013
and the terms of reference as amended were attached as an Appendix to
the report.

Members referred to the quorum arrangements for the Health and
Wellbeing Board and sought assurances that these were adequate.
Members also asked how the member organisations of the Board would
hold one another to account and in this respect emphasised the role of the
Council’s overview and scrutiny committee in scrutinising the work of the
Board. The officers were asked to convey Members’ comments to the
Board.

RESOLVED
That

1. the revised terms of reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board as
set out in the Appendix to the report be recommended to Council for
approval;

2. subject to such approval, the Director of Legal Services be authorised
to amend the Constitution accordingly; and

3. the Committee’s comments on the revised terms of reference be
conveyed to the Board.

WEBCASTING, RECORDING OF MEETINGS AND THE USE OF
SOCIAL MEDIA

The Committee considered a report on the logistical implications of
recording, webcasting and providing social media commentary in respect
of the Council’s decision-making meetings.

The report outlined and evaluated the Council’s experience to date and
briefly summarised the arrangements at a range of other local authorities.
It set out four options for future recording and broadcasting arrangements,
together with their associated costs.

A short film on an alternative audio recording system with enhanced
functionality was viewed by the Committee.

RESOLVED
That

1. the current recording and webcasting arrangements continue until the
end of the current municipal year;



Page 5

2. with effect from the next municipal year, an enhanced audio recording
system as referred to as Option 2 in the report be introduced for use in
relation to all of the Council’s formal decision-making bodies, and the
webcasting of Cabinet meetings be discontinued; and

3. the arrangements be reviewed 12 months after coming into operation.

37 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION

The Committee considered proposed arrangements for the ongoing review
of the Constitution. A systematic review of the Constitution was currently
taking place at officer level which included a survey of best practice at
other authorities. It was now appropriate to bring forward proposals for
members’ consideration and in this respect it was suggested that a
member working group be appointed to consider proposed changes to the
Constitution and make recommendations to the Committee.

RESOLVED

That

1. a member working group of five members of the Constitution
Committee (3 Conservative; 1 Labour; 1 Independent) be appointed to
review the Constitution, the names to be notified by the Group Whips;
and

2. substitute members may be appointed to the Group from within the
membership of the Constitution Committee.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.15 pm

Councillor A Martin (Chairman)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 5

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Constitution Committee

Date of Meeting: 4t August 2017

Report of: Acting Director of Legal Services (Acting Monitoring
Officer)

Subject/Title: Review of the Constitution

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The Council is undertaking a comprehensive review of the current
Constitution to ensure that it complies with all relevant statutory
requirements, and to examine how its current processes and procedures
may be altered to improve organisational efficiency and achieve stronger
governance. The background to and scope of the review is set out in the
advice note from external solicitors Bevan Brittan which comprises
Appendix 1 to this report (“the Advice Note”).

1.2  This report asks the Constitution Committee to endorse the proposals
arising from the Advice Note. It also asks the Constitution Committee to
appoint the Constitution Working Group as a formally constituted Sub-
Committee in order to take forward a full review of the Constitution, with a
view to presenting a proposed new Constitution to the Constitution
Committee which would, in turn, be asked to recommend the same to full
Council for adoption.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that, following consideration of the Advice Note, the
Constitution Committee:

2.1.1 agree the need for a review of the Constitution and the production
of a proposed new Constitution for consideration by Council in
accordance with proposals contained in the Advice Note

2.1.2 agree the proposed vision for the production of a new Constitution
as follows:-

‘to have a clear, succinct Constitution which is accessible, user-
focused, provides helpful instruction and ensures good governance
across all elements of service delivery”

2.1.3 agree the seven principles set out in the Advice Note as a starting
point for the review of the Constitution and production of a
proposed new Constitution.



3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Page 8

2.1.4 Agree the key areas for action and proposed approach set out in
the Advice Note.

2.1.5 Appoint a Sub-Committee of five (5) Members of the Constitution
Committee (3 Conservative; 1 Labour; 1 Independent) to meet
fortnightly with terms of reference as follows:

a. agree a work programme based on the priorities set out in the
Advice Note so as to divide the task of reviewing the
Constitution into appropriate work packages and allocating
the work packages to relevant Member and Officer task
groups to progress

b. approve the evolving re-drafted sections of the new
Constitution that are proposed by the allocated Member and
Officer task groups; and

c. approve a final draft of the full Constitution to be put to
Constitution Committee for approval, prior to Constitution
Committee then recommending the adoption of the same by
full Council.

2.1.6 The names of the Sub-Committee Members to be notified to the
Head of Governance and Democratic Services in accordance with
the usual rules of appointing members to committee places.
Substitute Members to be appointed from within the membership
of the Constitution Committee.

2.1.7 Agree that any product unanimously approved by the Sub-
Committee shall be treated as approved by the Constitution
Committee.

Reasons for Recommendations

The Council is undertaking a comprehensive review of the Constitution to
ensure that it complies with all relevant statutory requirements, and to
examine how its current processes and procedures may be altered to
improve organisational efficiency and achieve stronger governance.

The Council commissioned Bevan Brittan to carry out a desktop review of
the current Constitution. The proposals arising from that report are being
brought before the Constitution Committee for approval and endorsement
on behalf of Council.

Constitution Committee is asked to appoint a Sub-Committee in order to
take forward a full review of the Constitution with all stakeholders with the
objective of presenting proposals for a new Constitution to the Constitution
Committee, which will in turn be asked to recommend the same for
adoption by full Council.

It is considered that there is a need to have the substantive review and
drafting process subject to as focused an approval process as possible if



3.5

3.6

4.0

4.1

5.0
5.1
6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 9

the objectives of the review are to be achieved within an appropriate
timescale.

The adoption of the seven principles set out in the Advice Note will provide
a clear touchstone for the efficient development of the new document and
associated guidance. The approval of the key areas for action and
proposed approach will provide a framework to redrafting the Constitution.

A work programme, driven by the Sub-Committee, will identify the key
areas of the Constitution, involve relevant stakeholders in consideration of
the key issues and ensure the development of a new document within a
clear and accountable timescale. In particular, a recommendation from
Cabinet Members that all Chairs and Vice-Chairs, in conjunction with all
Group Leaders, be invited and encouraged to participate in the proposed
Member and Officer task groups is endorsed and envisaged as an integral
component of recommendation 2.1.5 (a) set out above.

Background and Options

See attached Advice Note.

Wards Affected and Local Ward Members
All wards are affected.

Implications of Recommendation(s)
Policy Implications

6.1.1 These will be identified and factored in at each stage of the
proposed review.

Legal Implications

6.2.1 Section 37 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the guidance
issued under it requires the Council to keep its Constitution up to
date and regularly review it.

6.2.2 Specific legal requirements that relate to the operation of each part of
the constitution and assocaited processes will be identified and
comprehensively addresses as part of the revivew process.

Financial Implications

6.3.1 The Financial Implications of a revised Constitution will be
considered as part of the review process, and this will require input
from the Council's s.151 Officer. This will ensure that the
Constitution supports the statutory responsibilities of the s.151
role.



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

Page 10

Human Resources Implications

6.4.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.

Equality Implications

6.5.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.

Health and Wellbeing Implications

6.6.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.

Implications for Children and Young People

6.7.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.

Rural Community Implications

6.8.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Implications

6.9.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.

Risk Management Implications

6.10.1 There are no direct implications arising from the process of review
itself. Any implications arising from the content of the proposed new
Constitution will be comprehensively addresses as part of the
review process.



Page 11

7.0 Access to Information

7.1 Appendices 2 and 3 to the Advice Note contain exempt information as
defined in Paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972 (Information in respect of which a claim to legal privilege could
be maintained in legal proceedings) and are therefore not for publication.

7.2  The remaining background papers relating to this report (Advice Note and
Appendix 1) can be inspected by contacting the report author:

Contact:
Name: Julie Gregory
Designation: Solicitor
Tel No: 01270 685842

E-mail: julie.gregory@cheshireeast.gov.uk



mailto:julie.gregory@cheshireeast.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

. _ Lawyers for the public,
Bevan Brittan @ l private and third sectors

Cheshire East Council

Advice Note — Summary of Constitutional Review
27 July 2017




Page 14

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan €)

INTRODUCTION

Cheshire East Council (“the Council”) was created following an announcement in early 2008 that the
then three District authorities and one County authority would be brought together as a unitary
authority on 1° April 2009. In this short timeframe Members and officers analysed the decision
making processes and functions of the exiting authorities and adopted its first Constitution in time for
Vesting Day.

The Council's Constitution Committee started a programme of reviewing key elements of the
document in 2010 and in late 2011 recommended a Constitution Working Group (CWG) be created
to undertake a more detailed assessment of the Constitution to identify any areas that needed to be
reviewed. Various changes were brought by CWG up to 2015. Since that time, and recognising that
a series of incremental changes were made over a number of years can impact on the efficacy of a
constitution as a holistic document, it is understood that the Director of Legal Services and Head of
Governance and Democratic Services commenced a page by page review of the constitution,
factoring in member and Officer feedback, to ensure that it best served the needs of the organisation
and complied with statutory requirements.

In March 2017, recognising the review work underway at officer level, the Constitution Committee
considered how best to manage the ongoing review of the Constitution, having recognised the need
to review the Constitution to ensure that it was fit for purpose, future proof and appropriate to take
the Council forward as a democratic authority. In order to bring forward proposals for Member's
consideration it was decided that a CWG be appointed to consider proposed changes to the
Constitution and make recommendations to Committee, which in turn would make recommendations
for change to full Council.

Mindful of the length of time that the “cover to cover” review has been underway, and of the need to
complete that process amid a number of competing demands, the Acting Director of legal Services
decided to accelerate that programme of work and draw in external best practice insight by
commissioning Bevan Brittan to undertake a comprehensive review of the Constitution. The scope
of the review was to ensure it complies with all relevant statutory requirements. In addition
observations the Council sought observations as to how the current processes and procedures might
be altered to improve organisational efficiency and achieve stronger governance. We have
undertaken a comprehensive review of all sections of the Constitution including the procedure rules
and the codes and protocols.

VISION STATEMENT

In order to guide the review work, a working Vision Statement was adopted to frame the objectives of
a reviewed or refreshed Constitution. That working vision statement was to aim to produce a clear
and succinct Constitution which is accessible, user-focused, provides helpful instruction and ensures
good governance across all elements of service delivery.

REPORT FORMAT

To help inform the review, feedback was sought on the Constitution from Officers and Cabinet
Members. These two groups were chosen as the groups responsible for most decision taking and in
the light of short timescales within which this initial review was undertaken (wider Member
involvement is proposed as the review progresses).. The feedback received has been very useful to
gain an understanding of the key areas of concern and to see practical examples of where officers
consider the Constitution is hindering the effective operation of the Council.

Appendix One (attached) summarises the issues raised by officers as part of this review. Most of
these comments related to concerns and frustrations with the officer scheme of delegation. A
number of officers provided very detailed comments on particular aspects of the scheme of
delegation and suggested changes to the specific wording. All these comments have been fuily
taken into account and have been extremely helpful in identifying anomalies and concerns. However,
given that we are recommending a completely new approach to the officer scheme of delegation and
a full rewriting, we have not incorporated these comments into our annotation of the Constitution.

M-17459060-1



Page 15

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Lawyers for the public,

Beva n Brltta n private and third sectors

We are conscious that the comments received are, at this stage, from officers only and we have not
had an opportunity to consider comments from, and views of, members. However we hope that
many of the issues we have identified will address concerns at member level and we understand
there will be opportunities going forward for member comment on the emerging proposals (and full
member involvement with any changes brought forward for formal consideration).

Attached to this summary are also:-

1.91 A compliance checklist (Appendix Two) showing how and where the Constitution
complies with the relevant statutory requirements and identifying areas requiring
review/updating and

1.9.2 A full annotated version of the Constitution (Appendix Three), highlighting where we
have identified

(a)  Contents requiring clarification/redrafting

(b)  Contents requiring updating/making future proof

(c)  Sections which are duplicated or superfluous

(d)  Contents which could be better referenced through e.g. links on the website
(e)  Sections which could be re-framed to better fit a modern local authority

There are in total 489 separate comments. We appreciate that this is a daunting list of
issues but we wanted to be as comprehensive as possible. The Constitution naturally
divides into different sections which can be taken forward by the most relevant members
and officers in parallel.

Appendices Two and Three are detailed and technical assessments, in our view most appropriately
used as a drafting tool by a focused working group or sub-committee tasked with reviewing and
producing a reframed constitution.

OVERALL CONCLUSIONS OF THE REVIEW

Overall we have found that the Council's Constitution is legally compliant and is, certainly compared
to a number of other Constitutions we have seen and reviewed, workable and relatively clear. There
are a few areas where further information is needed to be contained in the Constitution to meet the
statutory requirements (see Appendix Two) but this should be easily remedied.

However, it is very long (477 pages with over 45 separate sections) and there are a number of
aspects of it which we consider could be significantly improved. We consider that an updated version
would better fit the way the operational practice of a modern Council and would achieve the
proposed vision for its Constitution. Our report goes on to identify these aspects and suggest a way
forward but we want to place a caveat here first.

In our experience, considerable weight can be attached to the impact a revised Constitution can
have on the operation and culture of a council and can focus hopes for change on the production of
a revised document. A robust and effective Constitution can make a real difference to the operation
and governance of a council andthe actual process of production of a new Constitution can be very
powerful in providing an opportunity for open debate about the fundamental issues of how the
Council operates. The development of the new Constitution also needs to fit into any wider change
programme and there is a need to put in place a clear change management process (to include the
roll out of the new document and training on the Constitution and the suggested route mapped
processes/templates — see below). Our comments in section 4 below (Proposals for next steps and
action) consider this further.

in terms of aspects of the Constitution which we have identified as needing particular focus, the
following areas should be addressed:-

M-17459060-1



Page 16

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

41

4.2

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan @)

e Form and Presentation
e Accuracy, updating and future proofing
¢ Decision Making
o Member bodies
o Officer delegations
o Procedure rules for meetings
e Other procedures/codes and protocols
FORM AND PRESENTATION OF THE CONSTITUTION

Although not in as traditional a form as many local authority constitutions, the Constitution does not
read as a modern document and could be improved significantly through the use of more modern
language, web links, graphics and better presentation.

By having a general summary, then a set of introductory chapters then substantive sections, things
are said three times, often in slightly different ways and it is very difficult to be certain that the full
picture is being presented on any issue without exhaustive searching. This should all be cut down
and assimilated into a much clearer document. For example there are 48 separate references in the
Constitution to "Key Decisions" and the definition is repeated in three different places in the
document.

As part of this exercise the Constitution should be rigorously edited to remove repetition and to make
it more user friendly.

There is much in the Constitution which is important for the Council to have somewhere, but need
not be contained in this document. Policies/procedures etc can be referenced through web links
which makes the whole document less daunting and unwieldy and, if they are not a formal part of the
Constitution, allows them more easily to be updated/refreshed so that the Council can be more
responsive to needs that arise to alter operational practice and react quickly to opportunities to
improve service delivery or trial new ways of working.

This will all make it more accessible to its users who include

e The public

e Members

o Officers

* Partners and stakeholders of the Council
ACCURACY, UPDATING AND FUTURE PROOFING
The Constitution does not seem to be up to date with the changes in ways of operating and
delivering services which the Council has been embracing. For example there are very few
references to the operation of the ASDVs (which do have an impact on governance and
responsibility for functions) nor to joint working/shared services with other local authorities or across
local government and health. This all needs to be captured accurately in the Constitution
Local authority arrangements do change and whilst this means Constitutions have to be updated,

this should not be a constant exercise. The drafting should be future proofed so changes in post
holders, legislation etc should not, of themselves, trigger a redraft.

M-17459060-1



Page 17

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

4.3

5.1

52

5.3

54

5.5

56

Lawyers for the public,

Bevan Brlttan private and third sectors

A short, more accessible document will make it easier for any changes to be considered carefully,
implemented clearly and for there to be a robust system of version control and explanation to all
users of what changes have been made any why — this process is very opaque at the moment.
Such an approach also significantly reduces the likelihood of changes in one area of the Constitution
having unintentional or unforeseen consequences in other areas, potentially making the document
contradictory or unclear, which can impact on efficiency in practice.

DECISION MAKING

A key part of the Constitution (and which sets the tone for the culture the Council wishes to operate)
is how decisions are taken. This includes the balance between

¢ Cabinet collective decision making or powers of individual portfolio holders and
e Member decision making or officer delegation
The right balance must also be struck in the Constitution to ensure
s Democratic decision making supported by officers;
e Appropriate transparency and involvement in decision making;
o Efficiency of business and
e The ability to respond swiftly to events (whilst ensuring probity and checks and balances).
We consider that the sections in the Constitution dealing with Responsibility for Functions and the
Officer Scheme of Delegations could both be significantly changed to make this fundamental
approach clearer (and also make the document more manageable and future -proof).
In relation to the responsibility for functions between member bodies, the Constitution needs to
be streamlined and standardised so it is easier (for all stakeholders) to locate easily a clear
explanation of what decisions are made where. At the moment there is no standard approach to how
the bodies are described or consistency in how their scope is explained.
In relation to the responsibility for functions relating to officer delegations, we advise that this
needs a fundamental rewrite to adopt a different approach which slims down the detail in the core
Constitution and makes it more future proof. At the moment it is repetitive, confusingly drafted and
impenetrable in places. We recommend a new approach as follows:-
* A setof general principles covering all delegations and adopting a cascade approach
e Delegations to Head of Paid Service (HOPs)
s Delegations of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers
o Delegation to Statutory Officers
s Delegation to named directors with statutory functions

¢ Arrangements for local schemes of delegations

Linked to general concerns about delegations, there is uncertainty and confusion on the route map
which certain significant decisions have to follow e.g.

¢ How is a policy changed?

M-17459060-1



Page 18

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

5.7

5.8

6.1

6.2

7.1

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan €)

* If a business case is approved, what subsequent decisions are needed to go back to
members e.g. to go to procurement, to award the contract or are these covered in the initial
decision/delegation?

¢ What decisions require a business case?
* The process for individual members making decisions and for ODRs

We recommend that certain standard decisions are deconstructed and mapped stage by stage
through the decision making process to agree a shared approach and to test the application of the
Constitution so that changes/refinements can be made. As a separate document to the Constitution
an agreed set of simple flow charts covering typical decisions and explaining the route map can be
prepared. This will ensure clarity for members and officers and avoid frustration, confusion and
potential delays or risks of legal challenge.

In relation to the Procedure Rules for meetings, we have not made many significant suggestions
for changes to the content (which we consider is generally clear and comprehensive). However we
have raised some questions about the format of this section as it is currently quite complex and
difficult to navigate (especially for members of the public who want to understand how their council
operates).

OTHER PROCEDURES, CODES AND PROTOCOLS

The Finance Procedure Rules very comprehensive but at 66 pages, contain much information which
(whilst essential to the running of an effective Council) does not have to be contained in the formal
Constitution. The statutory requirement is to set out the Council's financial rules or regulations.
Anything else could be better placed in subsidiary documents, guidance etc which could be
accessed from links in the Constitution (if all of it needs to be publicly accessible).

We have included detailed comments on all the procedures, codes and protocols in the Constitution.
A few points to highlight are:-

Issue Comment

Access to Information The Council has given all members rights of access to a wider set of
exempt documents than the law requires — this may well be a
considered approach to encourage transparency but, in our
experience, this approach (and the inevitable fear of uncontrolled
release of exempt information) can hinder the openness of written
reports on important issues. That can actually be counter productive in
terms of transparency and fully formed decision making. We would
suggest this is reviewed.

Contract Procedure Rules | We have made some detailed comments to further improve the rules

which are already sound.

Other codes and protocols | We have made a number of comments and suggestions to further
improve the Constitution but these sections are generally sound and
well worded

PROPOSALS FOR NEXT STEPS/ACTION

We understand that there is a real momentum and desire in the Council to move ahead quickly with
a comprehensive review of the constitution. We would support speedy action to do this but would
also, from our experience of leading many constitutional reviews, advise against precipitative action
to redraft documents without full consideration and engagement.

M-17459060-1




Page 19

Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

8

8.1

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan

There will obviously be impatience to move ahead with some speed, and concern at the potential of
delay. But we would advise against the production of new drafting which has not had proper
stakeholder engagement and testing — this will result in documents which are not owned and which
do not properly address the current deficiencies.

We recommend a work programme to identify key areas of the Constitution, involve relevant
stakeholders in a consideration of the key issues and a development of the new document. This
approach need not take a long time — with a clear and tightly managed project plan/timetable, this
could be achieved in one Council cycle so bringing a new Constitution for consideration to full
Council after the summer period.

We consider that, to help frame the new document and ensure it is focused on achieving the right
outcomes, there would be merit in agreeing the overall principles which should underpin the
development of a new Constitution and which flow from a Vision for the Constitution which the
Council would need to confirm/articulate. The Vision currently proposed is:-

"To have a clear, succinct Constitution which is accessible, user-focused, provides helpful
instruction and ensures good governance across all elements of service delivery".

From our understanding of the Council's drivers for this review, and in the context for the Council at
the moment, we would propose the following seven principles as a start point for the new
Constitution.

Proposed Principles
The Council's Constitution should
e Recognise the Council's democratic leadership role;

e Support, not hinder, the efficient exercise of democratic decision making, good governance
and the delivery of services;

e Be modern in its language, format and presentation;

e Be concise — covering only those essential issues which need to be in the formal
Constitution and sign posting to other documents/sources;

e Recognise the new ways in which the Council operates (for example through ASDVs and
shared services),

e Delegate decision making to the most appropriate level with the right checks, balances and
scrutiny and

s Be future proof, not requiring constant revisiting and updating
KEY AREAS FOR ACTION

We suggest that areas of the Constitution are prioritised for consideration/focus as follows:-

Issue Proposed Approach

Principles to drive the review | A report should be taken to the Constitution Committee, on
of the Constitution behalf of full Council, to consider the proposed principles as
soon as possible. This will then provide a basis to drive the
revision of the Constitution.

Overall form and presentation | The Constitution Committee should be asked to consider the

7

M-17459060-1



Private and confidential: subject
to legal professional privilege

Bevan Brittan @)

Page 20

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Issue

Proposed Approach

and accuracy, updating and
future proofing

recommendations in this review in relation to the form, style,
presentation and arrangements for updating/future proofing the
constitution,on behalf of full Council, agree an approach to guide
the Constitution redrafting.

Decision making — terms of
reference of member bodies

These need a detailed review and redraft to present them in a
more coherent and standard form. There are also missing areas
which need addressing quickly, particularly

e Terms of reference for Shared Services Committee?
* Arrangements for Local Area Partnerships?
e Arrangements for the governance of ASDVs?

But otherwise no fundamental issues have been identified with
the core arrangements for the allocation of member decision
making - the challenge is to make the documents more
accessible and user friendly. There may be scope through the
review process to identify, with stakeholders, opportunities to
improve efficiency and operational practice. Any such changes
shouid be proposed as part of this review.

Decision making officer

scheme of delegation

This is the area of the Constitution which, in our view, requires
most focus and detailed work.

The Constitution Committee to consider the overall approach to
officer delegations recommended in this report.

If agreed, we suggest that a small working group be set up to
redraft the structure of the scheme of delegation, drawing in
officers from key service areas as and when needed (and
building on much detailed work which has already been
undertaken). The Constitution Committee should be asked to
consider and agree the overall approach to officer delegations.

An approach to local schemes of delegation should be agreed
and then each relevant service area required to develop their
own scheme (within a standard non-negotiable template) in
specified deadlines to ensure their own local delegations work
effectively.

Decision making — route maps
and flow charts for significant
decisions

A number of important decisions (which appear to be difficult to
navigate through the current constitution) should be identified
and then worked through by officers and members to agree an
approach and route. These can be used as a check as the new
Constitution emerges to ensure it is assisting (and not hindering)
the clarity and robustness of decision making.

The agreed final flow charts will not be part of the Constitution
but will be a practical tool for officers and members to use.

Council Procedure Rules

We suggest that the Constitution Committee considers the two
issues/proposals we have raised to change the format of this
section

e Possibly disaggregate all the meeting procedures and

M-17459060-1




Page 21

Private and confidential: subject

to legal professional privilege

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan @)

Issue Proposed Approach

embed the relevant ones in the section dealing with that
meeting (easier for stakeholders to find everything about that
meeting in one place

« |f the procedures are kept separate, consider losing the 8
appendices and incorporating the relevant sections into one
block, recognising that this will involve some repetition.

Other rules, codes and | We suggest that these are divided up for review by the
protocols appropriate officer and members and taken forward in parallel so
there is no delay. Some of these are self-standing and can be
reviewed and finalised as a self-standing task; others will need to
tie in with the broader reviews of e.g. decision making and
procedure rules

Overall consistency Although different sections can be reviewed and worked on in
parallel, it is essential that a strong overview and control is
retained (finalised by a rigorous signing off process) so that the
final document is internally consistent and robust. A final check
for statutory compliance should be made using the checklist at
Appendix Two

Roll out of new Constitution Once the new Constitution has been agreed and signed off,
whatever level of engagement there has been in its production,
there will still be a need for a structured roll out programme. This
should include workshops, training, briefings, induction for new
members and officers and opportunities for feedback.

8.2 We hope that this review will assist in moving towards a Constitution which supports and drives
forward the overall aims and objectives of the Council.

Bevan Brittan LLP
16 June 2017

M-17459060-1



Page 22

Private and confidential: subject

to legal professional privilege

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan @)

Appendix One

Officer Comments on Constitution

This Appendix contains a summary of officer comments on the current Constitution. They are grouped into
the relevant topics/sections of the Constitution to which they refer. The vast majority of them relate to
frustrations with the Officer Scheme of Delegation (which is probably to be expected).

All departments were asked to consider current issues and respond. There were around 30 detailed
responses received through the shared portal, but many of these wrapped up comments from a number of
teams/officers and attached previous comments/suggested changes. So the comments should represent a
meaningful set of views from the officers as a whole.

There were some powerful comments which we felt it was appropriate to quote (anonymised) to
communicate these views directly.

“The main problem with the Constitution is that it has developed organically and been updated on a
piecemeal/ad hoc basis (without reviewing how this relates to the rest of the document) which has
affected its consistency and internal logic”
“We should be working towards empowering people at every level, to get on and do their jobs and
not putting unnecessary blocks in the way”
“We need a cultural change backed up by simplified procedure and clear delegation making to the

appropriate level"”

"At 476 pages the constitution needs to go on a diet if anybody without an academic background is
going to be able to read and understand it"

“The long list of legislation just hamstrings us and we're out of date”
"‘Don’t get me started on updates (to the Constitution) which just appear”

The key areas identified were as follows:-

Officer scheme of delegation

There were numerous detailed comments and criticisms of the current scheme of delegation to officers.
These included

* Thelisting of all relevant legislation made it quickly out of date and required constant updating

» Officers were not confident that the “"chain of delegation" from the constitution through to every
officer needing authority to take a decision etc was sound

¢ Designations were out of date

» There were anomalies in specific schemes which needed addressing

» There was insufficient discretion for officers to act and financial thresholds were too low

Overall decision making

e Decision making was, generally, too slow and months were needed to get an issue through to
members and a decision made

e There was a lack of clarity on the route map for significant decisions e.g. when a business case
needed to be presented, when budget implications had to be addressed, how was a new policy
taken through the decision making process

e There was uncertainty on the requirements for transparency and notice on individual decision

10
M-17459060-1




Page 23

Private and confidential: subject

to legal professional privilege

Lawyers for the public,
private and third sectors

Bevan Brittan €)

making and on ODRs

Format and Process for the Constitution

The Constitution was too long

It was internally inconsistent

It took too long to amend

New versions appeared without notice and with no indication of how it had changed from the
previous version

11
M-17459060-1




Page 24



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 Review of the Constitution
	Review of the Constitution - appendix


